- "-'r -
Bank of India 75
Relationship beyond banking

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited



Ay

L]

Page
1

F
8

48
49
S5&
63

ontent

Contents
General Disclosures

Directors' Statement

Index to financial statements

Appendix 1 - Credit Ratings Scales

Appendix 2 - Conditions of registration
Appendix 3 - Deed of guarantee (Bank of India)
Independent Auditors' Report




A

i

General Disclosures
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

This Disclosure Statement has been prepared under the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements (New
Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 2014 (3s amended).

MName: Bank of India (Mew Zealand} Limited
Address: 10 Manukau Road
Epsom

Auckland 1023

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited (the "Bank") was incorporated on g October 2008. It became a
registered bank on 31 March 2011,

For the purposes of the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements (New Zealand Incorporated Registerad
Banks) Order 2014 (as amended), the Bank is currently the only entity within the Registered Banl's
Banking Group in Mew Zealand and accordingly the term "Bank” has the same meaning as the Bank's
Banking Group throughout this Disclosure Statement.

Mame: Bank of India

Address:  Star House C-5, G Block
Bandra Kurla Complex
Post Box No, B13g
Bandra (East)
Mumbai 4ooo51
India

The obligations of the Bank are guaranteed by its ultimate parent, Bank of India (refer to section 6
below for further details on the guarantee arrangement).

There are no known regulations, legislation or other restrictions of a legally enforceable nature which
may materially inhibit the legal ability of Bank of India to provide material financial support to Bank of
India (New Zealand) Limited.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited is 100% owned by Bank of India. Therefore Bank of India has the
ability to directly appoint 100% of the board of directors of Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited.

As at 30 September 2014, all creditors of the Bank have equal priority of claims over the Bank's assets
in the event that the Bank is liquidated or ceases to trade.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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General Disclosures
For the six months ended 20 September 2014

The obligations of Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited are guaranteed under a deed of quarantee
dated 14 January 2011 given by its ultimate parent bank, Bank of India, in favour of the creditors of
Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited ("the Guarantee”) .

Copies of the Guarantee are attached as Appendix 3.

The name and address for service of the Guarantor is:
Bank of India, Star House, C-5, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Post Box Mo.B13s, Bandra (East),
Mumbai gooosa, India.

Bank of India is the Bank's ultimate parent and ultimate holding company. Bank of India is not a
member of the Banking Group.

Details of the capital adequacy for the Bank of India as at 31 March 2014 are as follows:

Capital 373,510,000,000 INR
Capital/Risk Weighted Exposures (%) 10.76 %

The Bank of India has the following credit rating with respect to its long term senior unsecured
obligations payable in any country or currency including obligations payable in Mew Zealand in New
Zealand dollars:

Rating Agency: Standard & Poor’s
Current Credit Rating: BBE- /StablejA-3

On 2g September 2014, Standard & Poor's has revised the outlooks on the long term counterparty
credit ratings on the Bank of India fram BBB- (negative) to BBB- (stable).

Descriptions of credit rating scales are contained in Appendix 1.

Details of Guaranteed Obligati:

Bank of India unconditionally guarantees for the benefit of each creditor the due and punctual payment
by Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited of each and every obligation (whether at stated

maturity, upon acceleration or otherwise) now or hereafter owing or to become owing by Bank of India
{Mew Zealand) Limited to the creditor during the term of the guarantee.

There are no limits on the amount of the obligations guaranteed under the Guarantee. There are no
material conditions applicable to the Guarantee other than nen-performance by the principal obligor.

There are no material legislative or regulatory restrictions in India which would have the effect of
suberdinating the claims under the Guarantee of any of the creditors of Bank of India (New Zealand)
Limited on the assets of the guarantor, to other claims on the guaranter, in a winding up of that
guarantor.

The deed of guarantee does not have an expiry date,

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited
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General Disclosures
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Material Cross Guarantoes

There are no material cross guarantees.

The Bank has the following directors:

- Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran, Chairman and Independent Director (appointed on 31 May 2013)
- Sanjaya Singh Gaur, Independent Director (appointed on 31 May 2012}

« Sameer Handa, Independent Director (appointed on 12 July 2013)

- 5ankara Marayanan Anantharaman Radhamangalam, Director (appointed on 15 August 2013)

- Ranjitkumar Amarendra Jha, Managing Director (appointed on 13 December 2013)

< Judith Ann Whiteman, Independent Director (appointed on g March 2014)

- Koteeswaran Rajaveloo (appointed on 14 July z014)

- Tarun Kanji, Independent Director (resigned on 13 June 2014)

Communications to the directors should be addressed to:
10 Manukau Road, Epsom, Auckland 1023 , New Zealand

Sanjaya Singh Gaur, Sameer Handa,Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran and Judith Ann Whiteman are
independent directors who are not employees of the Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited or of any
other entity able to control or significantly influence the Bank. The Chairman of the Board is therefore
independent, Sanjaya Singh Gaur, S5ameer Handa, Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran and Judith Ann
Whiteman are residents in Mew Zealand.

Ranjitkumar Amarendra Jha, Managing Director, is resident in New Zealand.

Sankara MNarayanan Anantharaman Radhamangalam, Director, is resident in India.

Koteeswaran Rajaveloo, Director, is resident in India.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited



General Disclosures
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Cual ﬂl:-'"-- s and other dir

Rabin Sockalingam
Rabindran

Primary Occupation:
Commercial Barristerand
Internationallegal
consultant.

Koteeswaran Rajaveloo
Primary Occupation
Banker

Sanjaya Singh Gaur
Primary Occupation:
Associate Professorat
Auvckland University of
Technology

SameerHanda

Primary Occupation
Chief Executive Officerat
Patton Limited

Sankara Marayanan
Anantharaman
Radhamangalam
Primary Occupation
Banker

Ranjit Kumar Amarendra
Jha

Primary Occupation
Banker

Judith Ann Whiteman
Primary Occupation
Independent consultant
and Director

Bank of India {Mew Zealand) Limited

Qualifications
Barrister—at-Law({Middle
Temple),
Master of Arts{Business
Law),

Associate Member of
Arbitrators'and
Mediators' Institute of NZ
Ine.

Bachelorof Commerce,
Cerified Associate of the
Indian Institute of Bankers
(CAlIB)

Masterof Science (Hons.),
Bachelorof Engineering
(Hons.),

Masterof Philosophy in
Management,

Dactorof Philosophyin
Management.

Bachelorof Engineering
(B.E. Mechanical),
Masterof Business
Administration (MBA).

B.5c, M.A,
Masterof Business
Administration (MBA),
Certified Associate of the
Indian Institute of Bankers
{C.ALLB), Diplomain
Treasury Management
and Risk Management,
Diplomain Computer
Programming,

PG Diplama in Financial
Management,

PG Diplomain Persannel
Management.

BachelorofScience,
Certified Associate of the
Indian Institute of Bankers
(C.A1LLE)

BA- Accounting,
Institute of

Chartered
Accountantsin Australia,
CPA Australia

Details of other directorships

Auckland Transport, Regional Land Transport
Programme Public Hearings Panel (Chalrman},

Election Signs Bylaw Public Hearings Panel {Chairman),
Mew Zealand Liaoning International Investment &
Development Co. Ltd,,

Solid Energy New Zealand Limited.

Bank of India, India.

Mil

Refrigerant Recovery NZ, SVM Heldings, Auckland,
Hotunui Investments Ltd. Mew Zealand, Fatton Australia
Pte Ltd, Brisbane, Australia, Metjak Pty Ltd., Perth,
Australia, Alr Conditioning & Refrigeration Parts CQO Pty
Ltd, Gueensland, Australia, Mcdelea Pty Ltd., Mew Sould
Wales, Australia, Ozcold Pty Ltd,, Gold Coast, Australia,
Patton Aero Co. Ltd, Bangkek, Thailand, Patton
Refrigeration India Pvt, Ltd,, India

CommaonwealthFinance Corporation Limited, Hong
Kong

il

Presbyterian Support Morthern {Independent Trustee),
Te Waipuna Puawai Mercy Qasis Ltd.
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General Disclosures
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

The directors, their immediate relatives and close business associates have not entered into any
transactions with the Bank or any member of the Banking Group which either have been entered into
on terms other than those under the ordinary course of business of the Bank, or which could otherwise
be reasonably likely to influence materially the exercise of that director's duties.

The Board Audit Committee consists of three directors of which two are independent.

The chairman of the Beard Audit Committee is Ms. Judith Ann Whiteman. The other members of the
Board Audit Committee are Mr.Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran and Mr.Sankara Marayanan
Anatharaman Radhamangalam.

The Bank's code of conduct states: Members of core management are expected to devote their total
attention to the business interests of the Bank. They are prohibited from engaging in any activity that
interferes with their performance or responsibilities to the Bank or otherwise is in conflict with or
prejudicial to the Bank. If any member of the core management considers investing in securities issued
by the Bank’s customers, suppliers or competitors they should ensure that these investments do not
compromise their responsibilities to the Bank. Many factors including the size and nature of the
investment; their ability to influence the Bank's decisions; their access to confidential information of
the Bank or any other entity, and the nature of the relationship between the Bank and the counterparty
should be considered in determining whether a conflict exists. Additionally they should disclose to the
Bank any interest which they have which may conflict with the business of the Bank. As a general rule,
the members of the core management should avoid conducting the Bank's business with a relative or
any other entity in which the relative is associated in any significant role. If such a related party
transaction is unavoidable, they must fully disclose the nature of the transaction to the appropriate
authority.

Any dealings with a related party must be conducted in such a way that no preferential treatment is
given to that party. In the case of any other transaction or situation giving rise to conflicts of interests,
the appropriate authority should, after due deliberations, decide on its irnpact,

The name and address of the auditor whose report is referred to in the Disclosure Statement:
KPMG

18 Viaduct Harbour Avenue

P.0.Box 1584 Shortland Stroeet

Auckland 1140

MNew Zealand

Effective 30 March zo1g, the Reserve Bank of Mew Zealand (RBMNZ) issued revised conditions of
registration for the bank. The conditions of registration has been amended to incorporate the changes
to put into effect restrictions on high loan-to-valuation residential mertgage lending. The conditions of
registrations also updated certain definitions in the conditions which become effective on 1 April 2014
under the Financial Reporting Act of 2013. A copy of the full revised conditions of registration effective
on or after 30 March 2014 can be found in Appendix 2.

The Bank has complied with all conditions of registration over the accounting period.

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited
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General Disclosures
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Effective 1 July 2014, the Reserve Bank of Mew Zealand (RBNZ) has made changes to the conditions
of registration for the Bank. The changes refer to:

* Revised version of "Capital Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach)" (B524), to update
various defined terms relating to capital requirements for the residential mortgage lending.

* Revised version of "Framework for Restrictions on High LVR Residential Mortgage Lending” (BS5ig),
to amend certain defined terms in the loan-to-valuation ratio (LVR) restrictions applying to our bank
as a consequence of changes to BS2A and to add additional clauses on anti aveidance,

* Mew versions of several handbook decuments which need updating to take into account of the
coming into force of the Financial Reporting Act 2013,

As of the date of this Disclosure Statement, there are no pending legal proceedings or arbitration
concerning any member of the Bank in New Zealand or elsewhere that may have a material adverse
effect on the Bank.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited has the following general credit rating applicable to its long term
senior unsecured obligations payable in Mew Zealand in New Zealand dollars.

Rating Agency: Standard and Poor's
Current Crediting Rating: BBB-[Stable A-3

On 2g September 2014, Standard & Poor's has revised the outlooks on the long term counterparty
credit ratings on the Bank of India from BBB- (negative) to BBB- (stable).

Descriptions of credit rating scales are contained in Appendix 1,

There are no other material matters relating to the business or affairs of the Bank that are not
disclosed in this Disclosure Statement.

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited



Director's Statement
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Each director of the Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited, believes, after due enquiry, that as at the date on  which this
Disclosure Statement is signed:
¢  The Disclosure Statement is not false or misleading; and

®  The Disclosure Statement contains all information that is required by the Registered Bank Disclosure
Statements (New Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 2014 (as amended).

Furthermore, each director believes, after due enquiry that over the period ended 3o September 2014:
e The Bank has complied with all conditions of registration that applied during the year;
®  Credit exposure to connected persons were not contrary to the interests of the Bank’s Banking Group; and

®  The Bank had systems in place to monitor and control adequately the material risks of the Bank's Banking
Group including credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, currency risk, equity risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk and other business risks, and that those systerms were being properly applied.

Signed by Ranjitkumar Amarandra lha as director and responsible person on behalf of all the directors: (The
directors of the Bank were Ranjitkumar Amarendra lha, Koteeswaran Rajaveloo, Sanjaya Singh Gaur,

Sameer Handa, Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran, Sankara Marayanan Anantharaman Radhamangalam, Judith Ann
Whiteman).

dL—7

Ranjitkumar Amarendra lha
Managing Director

11 November 2014

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Forthe 6 months ended 30 September 2014

Interest income
Interest expense
Metinterestincome

Other income
Total operating income

Operating expenses
Impairment losses on loans and advances
Profit before income tax

Taxation expense

Met Profit after tax

Other Comprehensive income
Totalcomprehensiveincome

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Balance as at 1 April 2023
Total comprehensive income for the period

Balance as at 30 September zoa3

Balance as at 1 April 2013
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2014 (Audited)

Balance as at1 April 2014
Total comprehensive income for the period
Balance as at 30 September 2014

(Unaudited)

30-5ep-14
Maote S000

2 1,954
2 (338)
1,556

3 138
1,604

4 (2,338)
16 (12)

34%

6 (54)
250

250

Share Capital

So000
50,000

50,000
50,000
50,000

S0, 000

50,000

{Audited) (Unaudited)

31-Mar-14
S000
3,287
(462)
2,825

378
3,203

(2,448)
(95)
660

(194)
466

466

Retained
Earnings
000

473

283

756

473
466

939

938
250
1,189

Jo-Sep-13
$000

1,588

[214)

1,374

257
1,631

(1,135)
g1}
405

(122)
283

283

Total

$000
50,473

283
50,756

50,473
466

50,939

50,939
250
51,189

The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction

with the financial statements.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited



Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 September 2024
MNote {Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
30-S5ep-14 31-Mar-14  30-Sep-13
$000 $000 $000
ASSETS
Cash 7 156 65 i3
Due from other financial institutions 11 15,478 16,140 13,006
Balance due from related parties 1z 1,351 2,742 2,808
L.oans and advances 5,16 6L 713 48,564 459,587
Other assets 10 i 161 262
Current tax assets . - -
Property and equipment g 1,007 1,149 1,152
Deferred tax assels 6 65 Go B
Totalassets 75,671 6g,0821 66,949
Total Interest Earning and Discount Bearing Assets 73,941 67,138 65,531
LIABILITES
Balance due to related parties 12 14,101 11,752 6,529
Deposits and other borrowings 8 10,025 6,123 9,437
Other liabilities 232 257 177
Current tax liability 34 1 50
Totalliabilities 24,482 18,142 16,193
MET ASSETS 51,189 50,939 50,756
EQUITY
Share capital 13 50,000 50,000 50,000
Retained earnings 1,18g 939 756
Total shareholder's equity 51,189 50,939 50,756
Totalinterest and Discount Bearing Liabilities 21,83 16,961 13,001

Mo financial assets presented in the statement of financial position have been pledged as collateral for liabilities or contingent
liabilities.

The board of directors of Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited authorised these financial statements for issue on 11 Novemnber
2014

Signed for and on behalf of the board of directars

L—7

The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in confunction
with the financial statements.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Statement of Cash Flows
Forthe six months ended 30 September 2014

Cashflows from operating activities

Interast received

Fees and other income

Operating expenses paid

GST refund received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Increase in advances to customers

Met proceeds from related parties
{Decrease)fincrease in deposits from customers

Met cash flow used in operating activities

Cashflows from investing activities
Decrease in balances with other financial institutions
Purchase of property and equipment

Met cash flow from investing activities

Cashflows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares
{Payment to)/proceeds from to related parties

Met cash flow used in financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cashand cash equivalents at the end of the period
Cash and cash equivalent is made up of:
Cash

Cash equivalent due from other financial institutions at call

Total cash and cash equivalents

Mote

14

i1

(Unaudited)
30-5Ep-14
S000

1,928
138
(2,245}
b
(376)
(7s)
(6,661)
1,790
357
(560)

2,000
(11)

1,989

1,429
7705
9134

156
B,978
9134

{(Unaudited)

30-Sep-13
5000

97
257
{1,095)

(238)
(52)
(19,188)
1,825
764
(15,820)

18,000
(618}
17,382

1,572
4507
6,079

6,006
6,079

The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements and showld be read in conjunction

with the financial statements,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Motes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Statement of Compliance

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited (the "Bank") is a profit-oriented entity incorporated under the Companies
Act 19g3 and domiciled in New Zealand. Its principal activity is the provision of banking services. Bank of India
{Mew Zealand) Limited was incorporated on g October 2008. It became a registered bank on 31 March zo11.

The Bank is a reporting entity for the purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 2013 {FRA 2013). Its financial
statements comply with the requirements of that Act and the requirements of the Registered Bank Disclosure
Statement (Mew Zealand Incorporated Banks) Order zo14 (as amended),

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in New
Zealand ("NZ GAAP"), as appropriate for profit-criented entities, and the New Zealand eguivalent to International
Accounting Standards ("NZ  1AS") 34 Interim Financial Reporting and should be read in conjunction with the
Disclosure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2014,

These financial statements comply with International Accounting Standards 34 Interim Financial Reporting as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 11 Novemnber 2014

i e L
Hasi Hreparation

i
b

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for certain financial instruments
which are carried at fair value.

The functional and presentation currency is New Zealand Dollars (NZD).

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial infermation
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying
transactions or other events is reported.

1.3 Accounting Judgments and major sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Bank's accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to  accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or inthe period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future pericds.

Allowance forimpairment losses
Impairment allowance on each loan or receivable is evaluated based upon management's judgments in applying
the accounting policy in 1.14.

The determination of impairment allowance required for loans which are deemed to be individually significant often
requires the useof considerable management judgement concerning such matters as local economic conditions,
the financial parformance of the counterparty and the value of any collateral held, for which there may not be a
readily accessible market, The actual amount of the future cash flows and their timing may differ from the
estimates used by the management and consequently may cause actual losses to differ from the reported
allowances.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

1.4 Standards and Interpretations effective in current period
The following standards and interpretations have become mandatory for the Bank since the previous balance date.

MZIAS 32 (Amendment)- Financial instruments: Presentation- The amendment clarifies existing application issues
relating to the offsetting rules and reduces the level of diversity in current practice. It also clarifies the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off" and "simultanous realisation and settlement®.

MZ [FRS5 20,MNZ IFRS 12 and NZ IFRS 27 (Amendment) -Investment Entities- The amendment requires a qualifying
investment entity to account for investment cantrolled entities -as investments in associates and joint ventures- at
fair value through profitor loss; the only exception would be subsidiaries that are considered an extension of the
investment entity's investing activities. The consolidation exception is mandatory- not eptional.

NZ |AS 36 (Amendment) - Impairment of Assets - The amendment reverses the unintended requirement in IFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement to disclose the recoverable amount for every cash-generating unit to which significant
goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets have been allocated. Under the amendments, recoverable amounts is
required to be disclosed only when an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed.

NZ IAS 35 (Amendment) - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - The amendment allows hedge
accounting to continue in a situation where a derivative, which has been designated as a hedging instrument, is
novated to effect clearing with a central counterparty as a result of laws or regulation, if specific conditions are met
(in this context, a novation indicates that parties to a contract agree to replace their original counterparty with a new
ane),

IFRIC 21 - Levies - The Standard provides guidance on the accounting of levies in accordance with the requirements
of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The Standards provides insights regarding the
definition of levies, and the timing or recognition of provision related to government impose levies.

The amendments to the standards did not have any impact on the accounting policies, financial position or
performance of the Bank.

Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted

IFRS 15 - Revenue from customers NZ IFRS 15 replaces the following:

-1AS 18 Revenue

- |45 11 Construction Contracts

- IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

-IFRIC 15 Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate

- IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

- 5IC 31 Revenue - Barter Transactions involving Advertising Services

The new Standard has introduced a new model for the recognition of revenue using which revenue is required to be
recognized. The model requires revenue to be recognized based on the contractual implications of individual
contracts. Moreover, consideration is required to be measured as the amount to which the Company expects to be
entitled, rather than fair value of consideration. It is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

13
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September2014

IFRS g - Financial instruments

The Standards has completely been issued by IASB for implementation. The Standards has specified how entity
should classify and measure financial assets and liabilities. The Standard has also issued a new impairment mode|
similar to the model proposed  in 2013, This Standard is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after1
January z0a7.

MNZ IFRS g (2013) - Financial instruments
The Standard provides a more principle-based approach to hedge accounting and aligns hedge accounting more
closely with risk management. The Standard is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,

IAS 27 - Equity method in separate financial statements

The amendments have introduced the option to use equity method in separate financial statements, and apply to
the accounting not only for associates and joint ventures, but also for subsidiaries. The amendments are applicable
for annual periods beginning on or after 12 January 2016,

Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions [Amendment to 1AS 1g)
The amendments introduce a practical expedient for accounting fer certain contributions from employees or third
parties to defined benefit plans. The amendments have made such contributions eligible for the practical
expedient if they are;

Set out in the formal terms of the plan
- Linked to service; and

Independent of the number of years of service,
When contributions are eligible for the practical expedient, a company is permitted to recognize them as a reduction
of the service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered. This amendment is applicable for periods
beginning on or after 1 July 20u4,.

Amendments to MZ IAS Band IAS 38

The Standard clarifies that it is not appropriate to have a depreciation or amortisation method which is based on
revenue generated from an activity includes the use of an asset. it is not appropriate, because a revenue-based
method would reflect a  pattern of economic benefits generated from operating the business (of which the asset is
part), rather than economic benefits consumed through use of the asset. The Standard is applicable for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Amendment to IFRS 11 — Acquisition of interest in joint ventures

This Standard addresses how a joint operator accounts for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation in which
the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business. The joint operator applies the relevant principles for
business combinations accounting in NZ IFRS 3 Business Combinations and other relevant Standards. This is
applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle

Effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. This standard includes amendments to a number of
Standards that are largely clarifications, including for example, amendments to NZ 1AS 24: Related Party
Disclosures, which clarifies that a management entity providing key management personnel services to a reporting
entity is a related party of the reporting entity.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September zo14

19

Annual improvements to IFRS 2012-2014 Cycle
The IASB has issved an exposure draft (ED), propesing amendments to the following four standards:
IFRS 5 Mon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
- IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures
IAS 15 Employee benefits
IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
Extept for the proposed amendments to IFSR 5, the proposals would apply retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or  after 1 January 2016.

Foreign currency transactions
The Bank’s financial statements are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (its functional currency). The results and financial position of the Bank are expressed in Mew Zealand dalfars
{NZD), which is the functional and presentation currency of the Bank and are rounded to the nearest thousand.

In preparing the financial statements of the Bank, transactions in currencies other than the Bank's functional currency
{foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period.

MNon-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which they arise except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The profit and loss component of the statement of comprehensive income and all iterms in the statement of financial
position have been prepared so that all components are stated inclusive of G5T except to the extent that GST is
recoverable from the Inland Revenue.

~omparatives
When the presentation or classification of items is changed, comparative amounts are reclassified unless the
reclassificationis impracticable. There have been no presentation or classification changes in the current period,

Revenuerecognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Bank and that revenue can be
reliably measured. The principal sources of revenue are interest income and fees,

Interest

For financial instruments measured at amortised cost, the effective interest methed is used to measure the interest
income or  expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

For financial instruments measured at fair value, interest income or expense is recognised on an accrual basis on a
yield to maturity basis.

Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.

Lending Fees

Fees and direct costs relating to loan origination, financing or restructuring and to loan commitments are deferred
and amortised to interest income over the life of the loan using the effective interest method. Lending fees not
directly related to the origination of a loan are recognised over the period of service.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited 15
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Commission and other fees

Commissions or fees related to specific transactions or events are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income when the service is provided to the customer, When they are charged for services provided over a pericd,
they are taken to other income on an accrual basis as the service is provided.

Otherincome

Dividend income is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income when the Bank's right to receive the
dividend is established, Realised and unrealised gains and losses from remeasurement of financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss are included in other income.

1.10 Financecosts
Interest expense is accrued on a time basis using the effective interest method. All other finance costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

V@t

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the reporting period. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the  statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Bank's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the repurting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and are accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
areonly recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recoverad.,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the  manner in which the Bank expects, at the reporting date, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and lizbilities.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Umited
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets
against current  tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Bank intends to settle its current  tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

1:13 Cashand cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash, cash at bank, cash in transit and call deposits due from/fto other banks, all
of which are used in the day-to-day cash management of the Bank.

1.13 Statement of cash flows
The following terms are used in the statement of cash flows:
* operating activities are the principal revenue producing activities of the Bank and other activities that are not

investing or financing activities;

* investing activities are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not
included incash equivalents; and

A . financing activities are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed equity and
berrowings of the Bank.

Certain cash flows have been netted in order to provide more meaningful disclosures, as many cash flows are
received and disbursed on behalf of customers and reflect the activities of those customers.

1,34 Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets "at fair value through profit or
loss' (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and "loans and receivables’.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial

recognition. The Bank classifies all of its financial assets as loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables that have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted [n an active market are classified
@sloans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.

Interest incorne is recognised by applying the effective interest rate.

Recognition of financial assets
Loans and receivables are recognised on settlement date and are recognised initially at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.

@
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Objective evidence of impairment could include:

« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

«  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

s it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or financial re-organisation.

For certain categaries of financial assets, such as loans and advances, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Bank's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 6o days, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loans and advances, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account,
When a loan or advance is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off  are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

Asset Quality
Impaired assets consist of assets acquired through the enforcement of security and other impaired assets.

Assets acquired through security enforcement are those assets (primarily real estate) acquired through actual
foreclosure or in full or partial satisfaction of a debt. Other impaired assets refer to any credit exposure for which
an impairment loss is recognised in accordance with NZ IAS 35 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

A go day past due asset is any loan which has not been operated by the borrower within its key terms for at least go
daysand which is not an impaired asset. Although not classified as impaired assets or past due assets, assets in
which the counter-party is in receivership, liquidation, bankruptcy, statutory management or any form of
administration are reported separately. These are classified as "other assets under administration”.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Bank recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Bank continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

it
Y
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1.14

1.1%

FinancialLiabilitles
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities *at FVTPL' or ‘other financial liabilities'.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

The Bank classifies all of its financial liabilities 25 other financizl liabilities. Other financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective interest basis.

The Bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Lease
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership tothe lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Bank at their fair value at the incepticn of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The correspending liability to the lessor
is included in the statement  of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the |ease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or
loss in accordance with the Bank’s general policy on financing costs. Centingent rentals are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern over which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are initially recorded as a
liability and  are recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Propertyandequipment

Allitemns of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost  includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item. In the event that
settlement of all or part of the purchase consideration is deferred, cost is determined by discounting the amounts
payable in the future to their present value as at the date of acquisition. Subsequent costs are capitalised if it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the costs can be measured reliably. All other
maintenance costs are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Depreciation is charged 5o as to write off the cost of assets, other than freehold land, over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method or the written down value method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The following depreciation rates have been used:

Office equipment 10% written down value method
Furniture 10% written down value method
Leasehold improvements 8% straight-line method
Computer equipment 33.33% straight-line method

Bank of India {New Zealand) Limited
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1.17

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
isany indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset /s estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Bank estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash- generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount Is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time  value of money and the risks spacific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. Animpairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated asa revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased tothe revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment |oss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Bank

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement,

Equityinstruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if not designated at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with NZ IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets ; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue
recognition policies as set out at 1.9 above.

Provistans

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Bank will be required to settle the cbligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

i
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1.20

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimburserment will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Employes benefits
A provision is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of annual leave, long service leave and sick leave when itis
probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months are measured at their nominal values
using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which
are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured as the present value of the estimated futwre cash outflows to be
made by the Bank in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

(Unaudited) {Audited) (Unaudited)
30-Sep-14 31-Mar-14 3j0-5ep-13
$000 $000 5000
Interestincome

Loans and advances 1,680 2,603 1,232
From other financial institutions 228 526 329
Fromrelated parties 46 68 27
Totalinterest income 1,954 3,287 1,588

Interest expense
Deposits by customers 76 160 a8
Deposits by related parties 322 jo2 116
Total interest expense 398 462 214
(Unaudited) {Audited) (Unaudited)
30-5ep-14 31-Mar-1g 3o0-Sep-13
5000 5000 000
Banking and lending fee income 43 41 ig
Met commission revenue & & 3
MNet foreign exchange gains g 114 59
Otherrevenue z 6 1
GST recovered - 713 179
Total otherincome 138 378 257

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Operating expenses include:

(Unaudited)
o-Sep-1
& " sw00
Auditorsremuneration
- Audit of Disclosure Statements 21
- Review of Disclosure Statements 19
: - Advisory fee -assistance with LVR policy. 5
Directors' fees 35
Depreciation
Leaseholdimprovements L
Computerequipment 8
Office equipment 5
Furniture &
Total depreciation 63
Employee benefit expenses 626
Operating lease rental expenses 145
{Unaudited)
30-58p-14
$000
Residential mortgages loans 28,466
s Corporate loans 26,762
Other loans 230
Allowance for impairment losses (245)
Met loans and advances 55,213
$ Amounts due for settlement within 12 months 9,366
Amounts due for settlerment after 12 months 45,847
Net loans and advances 55,213
(Unaudited)
30-5ep-14
$000
Tax expense comprises:
Current tax expense in respect of the current year a9
Deferred tax expense relating to the crigination and reversal of
temporary differences (s)
Prior pericd adjustment -
Total tax expense 94
The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before income tax expense YA
- Income tax expense calculated at 28% (2013: 28%) gb
Prior period adjustment (2)
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 94

b
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(Audited)

31-Mar-14
5000

5
22

61

16

10

954
251

{Audited)
31-Mar-14
F000
26,520
22,051
226
(233)
48,564
5211
43,353
48,564

(Audited)
31-Mar-14
S000

211

(a7

154

185

134

(Unaudited)

30-Sep-13
5000

23

4

i1

35

453
106

{Unaudited)
30-Sep-13

000
27,796
21,709
311

(22g)
49,587
2,411
47,176
49,587

(Unauvdited)
30-5ep-13
2000

138

{26)

122

§05
113

122
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Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arise from the following:

Opening Charged Closing
balance to profit balance
For period ended 30 Sept 2014 orloss
(Unaudited) $000 s000 s000
Temporarydifferences
Property, plant & equipment (&) 2 (2)
Impairment allowance T4 3 68
Other liabilities (2) g ()
6o 5 65
Opening Charged Closing
balance to profit balance
Far period ended 31 March 2014 orloss
(Audited) 000 S000 s000
Temporarydifferences
Property, plant & equipment [2) [2) {4)
Impairment allowance 19 26 bg
Other liabilities 8 (g) (1)
&5 g 6o
Opening Charged Clesing
balance to profit balance
For period ended 30 Sept 2013 orloss
(Unzudited so000 s000 soo0
Temporary differences
Property, plant & equipment {(2) . (2}
Impairment allowance 39 25 T3
Other liabilities 8 =] (1)
45 16 61
{Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
30-5ep-14 31-Mar-14 30-5ep-13
£000 $000 S000
Cash on hand 156 T4 73
Total cash 156 g 73

LS
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Retail deposits

Wholesale deposits

Total deposits

Amounts due for settlement within 12 months
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months
Total deposits

Costs

Balance as at 1 April zo23 (Unaudited)
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at 30 September 2013 (Unaudited)
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at 31 March zog (Audited)
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at 30 September 2014 (Unaudited)

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2013 (Unaudited)
Disposals

Depreciation

Balance as at 30 September zoa3 (Unaudited)
Disposals

Depreciation

Balance as at 31 March 2024 (Audited)
Disposals

Depreciation

Balance as at 30 September 2014 (Unaudited)
Carrying amount

Balance as at 30 September 2013 (Unaudited)
Balance as at 31 March zo14 (Audited)
Balance as at 30 September 2014 (Unaudited)

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

(Unaudited)

30-5ep-14

000
10,025

10,025
9,853

172
10,025

Leaschald
Imprevements

5000

506
522

1,028
34

1,062

1,062

62

20
Bz

5B
128

44
172

a46
534
8go

(Audited) {Unaudited)
31-Mar-1g 30-5ep-13
5000 £000
6,123 G437
6,123 9437
5917 Si437

206 -

5,113 9,437

Computer Equipment  Office Equipment

$000

%000

39 56
0 18
(3 -
56 Th

1 28
57 102

- 10
57 112
20 8
(3) .

6 3
23 11
21 5
34 16

8 5
42 21
33 63
23 86
15 g1

Furnture

$000

145
28
(3}

130

131

132

16
(1)

wh

25

31

110
106
101

Total

$000

706
588
(6)
1,288
B4

3,352
11

1,363

106
(4)

34
136

By
203

63
266

1,152
1,149
1,097
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{Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
30-58p-14 31-Mar-1g 30-Sep-13
000 000 5000
Prepayments 54 170 b2
G5T refund receivable - - b2
Interestreceivable 217 191 138
Total other assets 271 361 262
Amounts due for settlement within 12 months 71 35 262
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months E
Total other assets 27 361 262
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
J0-5ep-1g 31-Mar-ag jo-Sep-13
000 S000 5000
Calldeposits 8,978 7,650 6,006
Shorttermdeposits 6,500 8,500 7,000
Total deposits 15,478 16,140 13,006

Amounts due from other financial institutions are due for settlement within 22 months of balance date.

The Bank is wholly owned by the Bank of India, a Company incorporated in India. The Bank of India is also the Bank's
ultimate parent. All related party transactions are conducted on normal commercial terms and conditions. No
related party debts have been written off or forgiven during the year.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are defined as being the Directors and Senior Management of the Bank. The
information relating to the key management personnel disclosed includes transactions with those individuals, their
close family members and their contrelled entities.

(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)

30-58p-14 31-Mar-14 30-5ep-13

000 5000 5000

Salary and other short term benefits 326 510 240

During the period, the Bank accepted deposits from the key management personnel. These were entered into the
normal course of the business and are at interast rates prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other
parties.

Guarantee from parent

The obligations of the Bank are guaranteed under a deed of quarantee dated 14 January 2011 given by its ultimate
parent, Bank of India, in favour of the creditors of Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited.

There are no material legislative or requlatory restrictions in India which would have the effect of subardinating the
claims under the Guarantee of any of the creditors of Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited on the assets of the
guarantor, to other claims on the guarantor, in a winding up of that guarantor.

M
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Transactions with related parties

{Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
30-5ep-14 31-Mar-14 1o0-5ep-13
$000 $000 000
Interestincome
Bank of India (parent and ultimate parent) 46 ] 27
Otherrelated parties . - -
Interest expense
Bank of India (parent and ultimate parent) - -
Other related parties 322 302 116
Deposits with
Bank of India (parent and ultimate parent) 3301 2,742 2,808
Other related parties . - -
Depaosits from
Bank of india (parent and ultimate parent) 133 157 109
Other related parties 14,068 11,595 6,420
Deposits with
Amounts due for settlement within 12 months 3,391 2,742 2,808
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months -
Total Deposits with 3,391 2,742 2,808
Depositsfrom
Amounts due for settlement within 12 months 1,905 4,014 413
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 12,286 7,738 2,226
Total Deposits from 14,193 12,752 6,529
{Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
30-5ep-14 I1-Mar-1g Jo-5ep-13
$000 $000 000
50,000,010 fully paid ordinary shares 50,000 50,000 50,000

The Bank issued 10 ordinary shares on g October 2008 and 50,000,000 ordinary shares on 7 February 2012 All
ordinary shares have equal voting rights and share equally in dividends and any profits on winding up. Shares do not
have a par value.

@
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{Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
J0-5ep-1g 31-Mar-14 30-5ep-13
5000 S000 2000
Profit forthe year 250 466 282
Mon-cashitems:
Impairment loss recognised on loans and advances 12 95 91
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 63 100 15
Deferred tax assets (g} (15} (16
Movements in working capital:
Increase in loans and advances (&,661) (18,168) (15,188)
Decreasef{increase) in interestreceivable (26) 276 329
(Decrease)fincrease in deposits from custamers 3,902 (2,550) 764
Decrease in balances due to other financial institutions 2,000 16,500 18,000
Increase in balances due to related parties 1,790 7114 1,825
Decreasef(increase) in prepayments 73 * By
{Increase)Decrease in G5T refundable Ll (45 (2g)
Increase in current tax liability 14 45 86
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables (28) 28 {53)
{Add){deduct items reclassified as investing or financing activities {2,000) {26,500) {18,000)
Met cash used by operating activities (560) {12,653} (15,810)

The following capital adequacy information is disclosed in relation to the Bank and Is derived in accordance with the
conditions of registration relating to capital adequacy. For the purpose of the conditions of registration, capital
requirements and ratios are calculated in accordance with the Reserve Bank of Mew Zealand Capital Adequacy
Framewoark (BS2A) dated September 2013 and is disclosed under the Base| lll framewaork in accordance with
Schedule g of the Order. The information for the comparative period is calculated based on the Basel Il framework,

Capital and Capital ratios

{Unaudited)
30-5ep-14
$000
Tier 1 capital
Common Equity Tier 2 ("CET1") Capital
Issued and fully paid up ordinary share capital 50,000
Retained earnings 1,185
Less deductions from CETz capital
Deferred tax assets (65)
Total Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 51,124
Additional Tier 1 ("ATa") capital -
Tiera Capital 51,124
Tier 2 Capital .
Total capital 53,124
e
(pMG)
\‘-.._‘__,.-"ll
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Capital ratios and solo capital adequacy

Common equity Tier 1 capital ratio
Tier 1 capital ratio
Total capital ratio

Minimum ratio requirement

Commen equity Tier 1 capital ratio
Tier 1 capital ratio
Total capital ratio

Buffer ratio

Bufferratio
Buffer ratio requirement

(Unaudited)
30-5ep-14
$000

8%

8%

58%

{(Unaudited)
jo-5ep-14
000

4.5%

6%

8%

{(Unaudited)
30-58p-14
5000

5ot

2.5H

(Audited)
31-Mar-ag
2000

94%

94%

94%

(Audited)
31-Mar-1g
$000

4.5%

6%

8%

(Audited)
31-Mar-14
5000
BEM
2.5%

(Unaudited)
Jo-5ep-13
000

11096

110%

110%

{Unaudited)
30-5ep-13
000

4.5%

6%

&%

(Unaudited)
30-5ep-13
5000

102%

2.5%

The Bank has 50,000,010 fully paid ardinary shares (tier one capital) issued at NZsa per share, Bank of Indiais the
sole shareholder. Each share confers on the holder the right to:

a. onevoteon apoll at a meeting of the Bank on any reselution

the right to equal share in dividends authorised by the board

b
€. therightto an equal share in the distribution of the surplus assets of the Bank,
d

There is no capital Instrument eligible for phase out.

Credit Risk

The Bank’s credit risk exposure is derived in accordance with the Reserve Bank document 'Capital adequacy

framework (Standardised Approach)’ (BS2A) dated September 2013,

On Balance Sheet exposuresas at
30 September zo1g

Cash and gold bullion
Banks

Residential mortgages not past due: LVR upto 8o0%
LVR =Bo% & upto gobé
LVR exceeds go
Corporate Loans

Other assets
Total on balance sheet exposure

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

Total
exposure after
credit risk
mitigation

$000
Unaudited
156

17,529

1,340
22,273
6,192

26,762
1,415
75,671

Risk weight

Unaudited
obh

20%

g%

100%

35H
o
754
100%
100%

Risk weighted
expasure

000
Unaudited

3,506
4]

1,340
7790

3,096
26,762
1,419
43,929

Minimum
Pillar 1 capital
requirement

S000
Unaudited

280

o
107
Bag
248

2,141
114
3,514
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Off Balance
Sheet exposures
as at 39

September 201g

Tetal
BXpOSUNe

Unaudited Unaudived
Other
commitments
where original
maturity is
maore thanon
yiEar

Total off
balance sheet
exposure

75

3729

Craditrisk mitigation

Credit conversion factor

c0%

Credit equivalent
armount

FO0D

Unaudited

1,864,

Average risk
waight

Unaudited

55%

Risk weighted
eXposure

Unauwdited

1099

1,009

Minlmurn Pillar 2
capital
requiremant

Unaudited

88

Mo on or off-balance sheet exposures are covered by eligible collateral, guarantees or credit derivatives.

Total capital reguirements

As at 30 September 2014 (Unaudited)
Total credit risk + equity risk
Operational risk

Market risk

Total

Market risk er

As at 30 September 2014 (Unaudited)
Interest rate risk

Foreign cumency risk

Equity risk

Total

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

{of period capital charg:

Total exposure
after credit risk
mitigation

000
Unaudited
75,400
nfa
nfa

79,400

Risk weighted
exposure of
implied risk

weighted
exposure

S000
Unaudited
45,008
5,000

2,373
52,392

Implied risk
Weighted
Exposure

£000

Unaudited

2,314
58

%373

Capital requirement

000
Unaudited
3,602

400

150

£,192

Aggregate
Capital
Charge

$000
Unaudited
185

5
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Market risk peak end-of-day capital charges
Implied risk Aggregate
Weighted Capital
Exposure Charge
{Unaudited) 5000 5000
For period ended 30 September zo1s Unaudited Unaudited
Interest rate risk 2,314 185
Foreign currency risk T B
Equity risk *
Tatal 2,408 193

The above capital charges are derived in accordance with the Conditions of Registration relating to
capital adequacy and the Reserve Bank document entitled “Capital Adequacy Framework”
(Standardised Approach) (BS2A) dated September 2013,

Peak end-of-day capital charges are calculated using the Bank's shareholders’ equity at the end of

the year.
Cperationalr
Total operational
implied risk risk capital
requirement
Weighted
Exposure
(Unaudited) 5000 $000
For period ended 30 September 2014 Unaudited Unaudited
Qperational risk 5,000 400
Residential mortgage by loan-to-valuation ratio (LVR)
Exceeds 8o% and
RYR g Does not exceed 0% not gatt S Total
Unauvdited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
value of exposures as at
3o September 2014
On-balance sheet 22,273 G192 & 28,465
Off-balance sheet 1,753 . - 1,753
Total 24,026 6,192 - 30,218

-
\,_/

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited 30



(=S

Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Capital requirements for other material risks

The other material risks that the Bank has identified are described below:
Reputation Risk: The risk of potential damage to the Bank from a deterioration of reputation.

Transfer Risk: The risk that funds in foreign currencies cannot be transferred out of a country. The risk relates to
specific explicit government restrictions or simply depleted foreign exchange funds in the non-industrial countries of
Africa, Asia, Latin America and Central and Eastern Europe.

Strategic / Business Risks: Current and prospective impact on earnings or capital arising from adverse business
decisions, improper implementation of decisions, or lack of responsiveness to industry changes.

Tax Risk: Risk arising from adverse changes in relevant taxation laws, failure to correctly identify implications of
existing taxation laws or breaches of tax laws.

Legal Risk: Risk arising from legal proceedings or failure to legally enforce a contractual arrangement relating to the
Bank's activities.

The Bank has reviewed these other risks and do not believe any individual risk as being material and requiring a
capital allocation . The Bank will review this allocation methodology every reporting periad in line with industry
practice as this area evolves over time,

The Bank measures the primary risks and its overall minimurm Capital Adequacy Ratio in accordance with the Reserve
Bank document entitled "Capital Adequacy Framework” (Standardised Approach) (BS24) dated September

2013. The Bank's approach to assess capital adequacy recognises the importance of using both quantitative
techniques and qualitative assessment /management judgement in arriving at a final measure of risk. As part ofits
ongoing capital planning and budgeting processes management also develops a range of scenarios as a basis for
identifying plausible severe loss events and changes in market conditions and measures | quantifies the potential
financial impacts {direct and indirect) on the Bank's capital adequacy for the foreseeable future (2-3 years).

Senior management of the Bank is responsible for the capital planning and budgeting process and is required to
perform ongoing calculation of Capital Adequacy Ratio and report this to the Board of Directors on a regular basis.
The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible to manitor the Capital Adequacy Ratio on aregular basis.

Capital ratios of the ultimate parent bank

Asatjo
At 31 March September

2014
2013
CET 1 capital ratio 6.84% 7.15%
Tier one capital ratio 7.56% B.13%
Total capital ratio 10.76% 10.77%

The ultimate parent bank is Bank of India, domiciled in India. Figures are taken from Bank of India’s Financial Results
for the period ended 31 March 2014 from its website, The above ratios are derived in accordance with the Capital
Adequacy Framework (Basel |1} as per Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines effective 31 March 2008,

KPME

@
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Bank of India is required by the RBI to hold minimum capital at least equal to that specified under the Basel ||
(standardised) approach. At balance date (i.e. 31 March zo14) Bank af India was in compliance with the requirements
imposed.

Bank of India has published pillar three disclosure information on the implementation of the Basel |l capital adequacy
framework on its website and can be found at http:/fwww.bankofindia.ce.in.

The Bank has no past due and impaired assets, individually impaired assets, and individual credit impairment
allowances as al 30 September 2014 (2013: $nil).

Allowance forimpairment losses
Rasidential Ottt Other on
’ martgage - balance sheet Total
As at 30 September 2014 (Unaudited) corparate
loans exposures
eXposures
Soo0 £000 sooo0 so00
Collectively assessed provisions
Balance at 1 April 2004 1ob 127 . 233
Charge to statement of comprehensive income 8 & * 12
Other movements 2 ¥ =
Balance at 30 September 2014 114 131 - 248
Individually assessed provisions
Balance at 1 April 2014 - . L il
Charge to statement of comprehensive income
Other movements . *
Balance at 30 September 2014 : <
Total allowance for impairment losses 114 131 - 245
Residential i ha;‘lﬁ Other on
As at 30 September 2013 (Unaudited) morigags corporate biaiance sheet Tote)
loans exposures
eXposures
$000 sooo0 So00 Soo0
Collectively assessed provisions
Balance at 1 April 2023 82 56 - 138
Charge to staternent of comprehensive income 29 G2 - g1
Other movements . 2 L
Balance at 30 September 2013 112 118 - 229
Individually assessed provisions
Balance at 1 April 2013 -
Charge to statement of comprehensive incame - - E -
Cther movements - = - -
Balance at 30 September 2013 - 5 - -
Total allowance for impairment losses 111 118 = 225

Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited
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For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Impairment losses on loans and advances

g On balance
rortgngaioans Sesteoponte (LT )
EXPOSUrES
L) E0E0 Foop SO
Collectively assessed provisions ] 4 - 12
Individually assessed provisions - - = *
Other movements »
Balance at 30 September 2014 8 & - 1z
Collectively assessed provisions 25 fiz % 51
Individually assessed provisions
Other mevements y 3 2 B
Balance at 30 September 2013 29 62 = 91

The Bank assesses on a monthly basis whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for loans and
advances. If the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed loans and
advances, loans and advances with similar credit risk characteristics are grouped and assessed collectively for
impairment.

The Bank used loss rates from the Reserve Bank of India directives to calculate its collectively assessed provisions.
This s because the Bank has no history of losses to calculate its own loss rates. The Bank has assessed these loss
rates as appropriate for the credit risk of its loans and advances.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment on loans and advances has been incurred, the amount of the charge
is measured as the difference between the loans and advances' carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the loans and advances' original effective interest rate.

The Bank does not have any financial assets designated as fair value through profit or loss as at and for the period
ended 30 Sep, 2014 (2013 snil). As such, there were no changes in fair value attributable to changes in credit risks
that have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income for the period ended 30 Sep, 2014 (2013: $nil}.

There was no aggregate amount of undrawn balances on lending commitments to counterparties for whom drawn
balances are classified as individually impaired as at and for the period ended 30 Sep, 2014 {2013: $nil).

There were no other assets under administration as at and for the year ended 30 September 2014 (2003 $nil).

(o)
L g
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Notes to financial statements
A For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Categories of financial instruments

Loansand 3 Fm a:ndal
7 liabilities at Total
A5 at 30 September 2014 (Unaudited) receivables siviortisd cost
S000 2000 S000
Assets
Cash 156 . 156
Balance due from related parties 3,391 . 3,391
Due from other financial institutions 15,478 . 15,478
Loans and advances §5,213 - 56,213
Interest receivable 217 - 217
Total financial assets 7455 * 74,455
Men-financial assets 1,216
Total assets 75,671
Liabilities
- Balance due to related parties - 14,191 14,191
Deposits and other borrowings . 10,025 10,038
Other habilities . 232 132
Total financial liabilities - 24,448 24,448
Mon-financial liabilities 34
Total liabilities 24,482
Categories offinancial instrument
Loans and z ITE[‘I.';‘\I'IC'HB!
: liabilities at Total
As at 30 Saptember 2013 (Unaudited) receivables amartised cost
E000 S000 000
Assets
Cash 73 T e
Balance due from related parties 2,808 - 3,805
Due from ather financial institutions 13,006 . 13,006
Loans and advances 49,587 . 49,780
Interest receivable 138 - 138
Total financial assets 65,612 . &g, 8og
a Mon-financial assets 1,144
' Total assets 66,949
Liabilities
Balance due to related parties . 529 6,520
Deposits and other borrowings - 8,417 9,437
Other iabilities - 177 177
Total financial liabilities - 16,143 16,143
Meon-financial liabilities 50
Total liabilities 16,193

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Fairvalue of financial instrums

As st 30 September 201y (Unavdited)

Financial assets

Cash

Balznce due from related parties
Due from other financial institutions
Loans and advances

Interest receivable

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Balance due to related parties
Deposits and other borrowings
Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities

As at 30 September 2023 (Unaudited)

Fimancial assets

Cash

Balance due from related parties
Due from other financial institutions
Loans and advances

Interest receivable

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Balance due to related parties
Deposits and other borrowings
Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

Carrying
Amounts

156
3392
15,478
55,213
217

T4 455

14,391
10,025

232
2t 848

Carrying
Amounts

5000

73
2,808
13,006
49,587
138
65,612

6,529
9,437
7
16,243

Estimated Fair
Value

5000

156
1373
15,406
55,860
233
75,028

13,Bg7
16,047
232

24,176

Estimated Fair
Value

$000

T2
2,808
13,006
43,780
138
G5, Bog

6,525
8437
i
16,143

35
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Falr value estimation

Quoted market prices, when available, are used as the measure of fair values for financial instruments. However, for
some of the Bank’s financial instruments, quoted market prices do not exist. For such financial instruments, fair
values presented are estimates derived using present value or other market accepted valuation technigues, These
techniques involve uncertainties and are affected by the assumptions used and judgements made regarding risk
characteristics of various financial instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, future expected loss
experience and other factors, Changes in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates and the resulting fair
values.

The fair value estimates were determined by application of the metheds and assumptions described below.

Cash
For cash assets, the carrying amount is equivalent to the fair value as they are highly liquid. For short term liquid
assets, estimated fair values are based on quoted market prices,

Balance due from other financial institutions
These are call and short term deposits with other financial institutions which are relatively liquid and therefore
carrying amount is equivalent to fair value,

Advances to customers

For variable rate loans and advances, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. For fixed rate loans
and advances, fair values have been estimated using a discounted cash flow mode| with reference to market interest
rates, prepayment rates and rates of estimated credit losses,

Other financial assets
Included in this category are interest receivables and other short term receivables. For these balances the carrying
value is considered to approximate the fair values, as they are short term in nature or are receivable on demand.

Deposits by customers

For fixed term deposits by customers, fair values have been estimated using a discounted cash flow model with
reference to market interest rates, For other deposits by customers, the carrying amount s a reasonable estimate of
fair value.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are generally short-term and are expected to be settled within one year. Therefore, the
carrying amount is equivalent to fair value. The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments where the
fair value is not equivalent to the carrying amount. The financial instruments are group into Levels 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fairvalue is observable:

Levela
Level 1 inputs are quaoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Levelz
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly ar indirectly.

LE"UEI L]

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September zo14

PR P Dy e Levels Loval 2 Level3 Total
$000 000 soco S000
Loans and receivable
Dwe from other financial institutions - . 15,406 15,406
Dwe from related parties - - 3,373 3,373
Loans and advances . - 55,860 55,860
Other financial liabilities -
Balance due to related parties x - a3, Bay 23,897
Depaosits and other borrawings - * 10,047 10,047
Levela Levelz Levely Total
As at 30 September zoa3 (Unawdited)
S000 soo0g 5000 fo00
Loans and receivable
Due from other financial institutions . - 13,006 13,006
Due from related parties - . 2,808 2,808
Loans and advances - - 49,780 49,780
Other financial liabilities - - - .
Balance due to related parties - - 6,529 6,529

Deposits and other borrowings S : 2437 9,437

Transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy are determined at the end of the reporting period. There have been
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year. There have also been no transfers into/out of Level 3 during
the period ended 30 September 2014 (2o13:$nil}

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss arising as a result of the diminution in credit quality of the borrower or counterparty and
the risk that the borrower or counterparty will default on contractual repayments under and advance.

#As at 31 March 2014, the Bank deposited its funds with financial institutions with a eredit rating from Standard &
Poors' of AA- (2013; AA-) or with related parties. The Bank has established a Credit Committee that specifically
oversees and co-ordinates the Bank's credit risk management functions. The Credit Committee has primary
responsibility for identifying, measuring and monitoring the Bank's exposure to credit risk. The Credit Committee
reports to the Board on credit risk on a quarterly basis.

The credit policy has been set by the Credit Committee and approved by the Board. Bank officers seek Credit
Committee approval before deviating from any lending guideline or policy. Credit approval authorities have been
delegated by the Board to senior executives of the Bank. Cempliance with these policies is manitored by the Credit
Committee and reported to the Board.

Credit rating models

The Bank assesses risk at the time of appraisal of the loan using its rating model for various types of borrowers. A
business portfolio is assessed on a risk rated basis and a retail portfolic on a scoring basis.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited 37
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Credit exposure ceilings
As a means of avoiding concentration of credit risk, the Bank sets ceilings in refation to single/group borrowers,
unsecured borrowers and with respect to each industry sector,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that exposure to price movements in financial instruments, arising as a result of changes in
market variables, will result in a loss suffered by the Bank. The Bank has established a Risk Management Committee
that is responsible for, among other things, identifying, measuring and maonitering the Bank's exposure to market
risk. The Risk Management Committee meets on a quarterly basis and receives guidance and technical suppert from
staffin the Bank of India head office. The relevant process for each category of market risk is as follows:

Interest rate risk
The Bank undertakes interest rate sensitivity gap analysis on a quarterly basis on & contractual basis as a means of monitoring
interest rate risk. Short term interest rate risk is calculated using the Met Interest Earnings at Risk tool.

Foreign exchange risk

The Bank undertakes analysis on material open foreign exchange positions through ensuring foreign exchange
deposits are matched by corresponding foreign exchange balances held with financial institutions as a means to
monitor foreign exchange risk.

Equity risk
The Bank does not have any equity risk,

Liquidity ris}
Liquidity risk occurs when an institution is unable to fulfil its commitment in the time when the commitment falls
due. The Risk Management Committee is responsible for identifying, measuring and monitoring liquidity risk
affecting the Bank.

The Bank monitors its one-week and ane-month mismatch ratios and its core funding ratio on a daily basis to ensure
compliance with regulatory requirements,

Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.

The Bank’s senior management is responsible for implementing the operational risk management initiatives
formulated by the Board. The Bank's senior management meets monthly to analyse changes or trends in respects of
operational risk. The Bank's senior management may make recommendations to the Board on strategies that may
irmprove the Bank's operational risk profile,

ital
The Board and senior management undertake capital planning, in accordance with the Bank's internal capital
adequacy assessrment policy. As part of the capital planning process, the Board reviews:
e Thecurrent capital requirements of the Bank;
s  Thetargeted and sustainable capital in terms of business strategy and risk appetite; and
- Future capital planning (with a three year cutlook).

The capital planis revised on an annual basis or more regularly if necessary, to meet the Bank's obligations under
Basel [Il. For further information, see Mate 15. [KPMG

)
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Revi 's risk managemen 5
There have been no reviews conducted in respect of the Bank's risk management systems since inauguration.

Internal audit function

The Bank utilises an internal audit function as a control measure to enable senior management of the Bank to
monitor and review the Bank on an ongoing basis. The internal audit function of the Bank is part of the Bank of
India's palicy to ensure that all Bank of India branches and subsidiaries have appropriate systems and procedures in
place and comply with all applicable home and hest country regulations. Specifically, the Bank is subjecttoa
monthly compliance review that is undertaken by senier management of the Bank. The purpese of this review s to
check constant and concurrent compliance with all systems and precedures by the Bank. The Bank of India's head
office internal audit team has not reviewed the Bank for this financial year as part of its overseas subsidiaries rotation
of internal audits.

Interestrepricing
The table below summarises the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk. It includes the financial instruments at carrying amounts,
categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates.

Asat 3o Sept Over3 months Owver & months et Mon -

2014 Total Uptogmonths  anduptob anduptoa B t: kS Overzyears interest-

{unaudited) months year P e bearing
S000 $000 S000 5000 5000 $000 S000

Financial assets

Cash 156 - . - - - 155

Balance due 3,191 1,893 1,340 . . . 158

from related

parties

Dwe from other 15,478 13,700 1,500 - - . 278

financial

Institutions

Loans and 55,213 43,706 765 3,654 7,333 . (245)

adwances

Interest 237 - - - . . 2137

receivable

Total financial T4455 59,249 3,605 3,654 7,333 - 564

assets

Financial Liabil ities

Balance due to 14,191 - . 1,772 414 11,872 133

related parties

Deposits and 10,025 g 896 1,530 235 - 172 2,192

ather borrowings

Other liabalities 232 - - . . - 232

Taotal financial 24,458 5,856 1,530 2,007 FATN 12,044 2,557

liabilities

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited 39
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For the six months ended 30 Septemberzo14

Overb ths Mon -

Asat3oSept Over3months Over 6 mon Dvarsyearand .
2013 Total Uptoymonths andupto® anduptoa up o 2 years Overz years interest-
{unaudited) months year bearing

Zo00 5000 000 S000 £000 So00 2000
Financial assets
Cash 7 ] - = - s 73
Balance due 2,808 228 1,224 1,331 . i 25
from related
parties
Due from ather 13,006 7,832 5,000 - = - 74
financial
institutions
Loans and 49,587 37,876 1,062 4,125 6,287 467 (229)
advances
Interest 138 - . = . - 138
receivable
Total financial 65,612 46,036 7,285 5455 6,287 467 B2
assets
Financial Liabil ities
Balance due to b,52g - 500 3,755 1,714 402 105
related parties -
Depasits and 0,437 5,087 1,354 150 - . 2,856
other
borrowings
Other liabilities g7 cS % & # . 177
Total financial 16,143 5,087 1,853 3,945 1,714 402 3,242
liabilities

LPMG
N
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For the six months ended 30 September zo14

Liguidity risk

The table below summarises the cash flows receivable and payable by the Bank under non-derivative financial assets
and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities as at 30 September 2014. The amounts disclosed are contractual
undiscounted cash flows and is not disclosed based on expected cash flows. The liquid assets are for the purpose of
managing liquidity.

As at 30 Sept 2014 Up to 3 months 3 to 12 months 1to §years Overgyears Ondemand Total
(Unaudited)

2000 000 £000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Cash A . - . 156 156
Balznce due from related 437 2,800 - - 158 3,395
parties
Due from other financial 5,063 1,619 - - 8,578 15660
institutions &
Advances to customers 3,284 g§,211 25,002 53,573 2,017 8z,087
Interest receivable 217 - - - - 217
Total financial assets 9,001 13,630 25,002 43,573 11,309 102,515
Liabilities
Balance due to related = 1,861 14,154 - 133 16,188
parties
Deposits and other 6,001 55 190 = 3,601 10,137
borrowings
Other liabilities 232 - - * . 232
Total financial liabilities 6,233 2,206 14,384 - 3,734 26,557
Met non derivative cash 2,768 11,424 10,618 43,573 7:.575 75,958
flows
Off Balance sheet cash flows
Loan commitments . - = = 3,729 3729
Total - = = £ 3,728 3,729
Met cash flows 2,768 131,424 10,618 43,573 3,846 72,229

KPMG
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For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Asat 30 Sept 2013 Up to 3 menths 3to 12 months 1to 5 years Oversyears Ondemand Total
{Unaudited)

5000 S000 5000 $000 000 000
Assets
Cash " - . . 3 73
Balance due from related 229 2,B35 * 2 25 2,88g
parties
Cue from other financial 2,015 5,005 - - 6,006 13,120
institutions
Leans and advances 1,145 4181 25,375 52,153 1,930 74,768
Interest receivable 138 - - - - 138
Total financial assets 3,531 11,85 25,379 §2,153 8,034 50,588
Liabilities
Balance due to related . heh52 2,322 . 108 6,882
parties
Depaosits and other hhT 1,545 . - 3,502 9,518
bomowings
Cther liabilities . - . . 177 177
Total financial liabilities by 71 5,987 2,322 . 3,787 16,577
Met non derivative cash {g40) g5, 8o 23,057 42,153 &, 247 Thrhil
flows
Off Balance sheet cash flows
Loan commitments - - . - 3,423 2,422
Total . . - - 2,433 2,422
Met cash flows (540) 5894 23,057 42,153 1,825 71,989

tHPMG
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For the six months ended 30 September 2014

The following table breaks down the Bank's main credit exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by the
industry and geography area of the Bank's main counterparties,

Analysis of on balance sheet credit exposure by industry (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30-58p-14 30-Sep-13
5000 000
Personal & Other Services 50 593
Property & Business Services 32,068 21,342
Finance, Investment & Insurance 20,665 1,963
Retail & Wholesale Trade 2,264 3,635
Hospitality 900 :
Health & Community Services 400
Other 1,200 2,082
Households 15,651 19,085
Printing & Related Activities 1,129 1,212
Subtotal 74,327 55,816
Allowance for impairment losses (245) {z2g)
Total on-balance sheet credit exposures 74,082 49,587
Analysis of on balance sheet exposures by geographic area {Unaudited) (Unaudited)

jo-5ep-14 30-5ep-13

5000 000
Mew Zealand 70,691 49,587
Asia 3,245 +
America 146 -
Total on-balance sheet credit exposures 74,082 49,587

Off balance sheet credit exposures jo-Sep-14  30-5ep-13

S000 5000
Loan commitments 3,729 2,422
Total off-balance sheet credit exposures 3,729 2,422

" [
Analysis of off balance sheet credit exposure by industry i g - i

000 F000
Property & Business Services 2,274 1,527
Finance, Investment & Insurance - 142
Retail & Wholesale Trade 14 450
Other 2 3
Househoids 1,439 217
Printing & Related Activities - 81
Total off-balance sheet credit exposures 3,729 2,422

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Analysis of maximum exposure to credit risk and collateral and other credit enhancements held:

Maximum
exposure

Maximum
exposure

(Unaudited) {Unaudited)

30-58p-14 30-5ep-13

5000 5000

Fixed rate mortgages ™ 10,939 11,147
Variable rate mortgages o 17,468 165,549
Business lending " 26,762 21,709
Secured lending (other)™ 185 28
Unsecured lending (other) bl a3
Balance with related parties 339 2,808
Due fram other financial institutions 15,478 13,006
Total gross credit exposure 76,327 65,630
Allowance for impairment losses (z45) (229)
Total net credit exposures 74,082 65,401

) Residential mortgages are fully secured by residential properties.
) gusiness lending is fully secured by general security agreements and personal guarantee.

@ Other personal loans are fully secured by depesits.

The carrying value of non-cash collateral reflects the fair value of the physical assets limited to the carrying value of
the asset where the exposure is over-collateralised. In certain cases where active markets or recent valuations of the
assets are not available, estimates will be used.

For assets collateralised by residential or commercial property (and certain other physical assets), where it is not
practicable to assess current market valuations of each underlying property, values reflect historical fair values
amended for movements in appropriate external indices.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

Concentration of funding arise where the Bank is funded by industries of a similar nature or in particular geographies. An

analysis of financial liabilities by industry sector and geography is as follows:

Analysis of funding by industry sector:
Finance, Investment and Insurance
Households

Personal & Other Services

Health & Community Services

Others

Total funding

Analysis of funding by geographical area:
New Zealand

Asia

Total funding

Credit exposure is calculated on the basis of actual exposure net of any amounts offset and any individual
credit impairment allowances, The credit exposure information excludes credit exposures to connected

{Unaudited)
30-5ep-14
so00
14,191

8,557

109

1,359
24,216

{Unaudited)
3o-Sep-1y
5000

24,084

132
24,216

{Unaudited)
30-5ep-13
$000

6,829

5,867

100

500

2,670
15,966

(Unaudited)
30-5ep-13
S000

15,870

oh

15,066

persons, bank counterparties and the central government of any country with a long term credit rating of A-

or Az or above, orits equivalent,

There were no individual bank and non-bank counterparties which the Bank's Banking Group has an aggregate
credit exposure that equals or exceeds 10% of the Bank's Banking Group's equity as at 30 September

2024 (2013: nil).

There were no individual bank and non-bank counterparties which the Bank's Banking Group has a peak end-
of-day aggregate credit exposure that equals or exceeds 10% of the Bank's Banking Group's equity for the

year ended 30 September 2014 (2013: nil)

As at 30 September 2014

Credit exposure to connected persons

Credit exposure to non-bank connected persons
Peakend-of-day

Credit exposure to connected persons

Credit exposure to non-bank connected persans

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

(Unaudited)
30-5ep-14
S000

33

3351

(Unaudited)
30-5ep-13
5000

2,808

2,808

@
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September 2014

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
Jo0-Sep-ay 30-5ep-13
% of Tier1 % of Tier1

Capital Capital
Asat 30 September
Credit exposure to connected persons 6.6% 5.5%
Credit exposure to non-bank connected persons 0.0% 0.0%
Peak end-of-day
Credit exposure to connected persons 6.6% 5.5%
Credit exposure to non-bank connected persons o.ob a.0%
This information has been derived in accordance with the Bank's condition of registration and Connected
Exposure Policy (BS8) and is net of individual credit impairment allowances and excludes advances to
connected persons of a capital nature.
Peak end-of-day aggregate exposure is derived by determining the maximum end-of-day aggregate
amount of credit exposure over the accounting period and then divided by the Ban k's tier one capital as at
reporting date.
As at 30 September 2014, the rating-contingent limit applicable to the Bank's banking group was 15% of tier
one capital. Over the year ended 30 September 2014, ne changes have been made to the rating-contingent
limit. Within the overall rating-contingent limit, there is a sublimit of 15% of tier one capital that applies to
the aggregate credit exposure to non-bank connected persons. (March 2014:25%; September 2013: 15%)
Aggregate credit exposure to connected persons has been calculated on a gross basis.
Aggregate amount of contingent exposures of the Bank's banking group to connected persons arising from
risk lay- off arrangements in respect of credit exposures to counterparties (excluding counterparties that are
connected persons) as at 30 September 2014 is snil (March 2014: nil; September 2023: $nil),
Aggregate amount of the Bank's banking group's individual credit impairment allowances provided against
credit exposures to connected persons as at 30 Septemberzoxy is $nil (March 2014: $nil; September 2013;
nil).
Capital Commitments
As at 30 September 2014, the Bank does not have any commitments for capital expenditure. (2013 snil).
Operating lease commitments
Operating leases relate to the Bank's premises and motor vehicles.
{Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
30-5ep-14 F1-Mar-14 30-5ep-13
$000 $000 £000
Mot longer than one year 272 285 92
Longer than one year and not longer than five years 702 73 857
Lenger than five years 43 GOl gbo
Total 1,417 1,563 1,708

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Notes to financial statements
For the six months ended 30 September zo14

The Bank does not conduct any insurance business, securitisation, funds management, other fiduciary activities, and
marketing and distribution of insurance products,

The Bank operates in a single segment, predominantly in the banking and finance industry in Mew Zealand.

The Bank has no material contingent liabilities as at 30 September 2014. (2013: snil).

There were no significant subsequent events arising up to the date of signing of these accounts,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Financial Statements

Credit Ratings Scales

Long Term Debt Ratings Standard Moody's
IBCA and Poor's

Highest quality | Extremely strong capacity to pay interest and principal AAA ABA
High quality [ Very strong Al AA
Upper medium grade f Strong ) A
Medium grade (lowest investment grade) [ Adequate BBEB Baa
Predominately speculative | Less near term vulnerability to default BB Ba
Speculative, low grade / Greater vulnerability B B
Poorto default [ identifiable vulnerability CcC Caa
Highest speculations cC Ca
Lowest quality, no interest C C
Payment in default, in arrears - questionable value D

Fitch

Abh,
AA
A
BBB

BB
B
cco
cC
C
D

Credit ratings between AA — CCC by Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings may be modified by the addition of a plusor
minus sign {signalling higher and lower end of the scale respectively). Moody's Investor Services applies numeric
modifies 1,2 and 3 to each generic rating classification with a 1 indicating a higher ratingand a3 indicatinga lower

rating within that generic rating categary.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Appendix 2

Conditions of registration for Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited These conditions of registration apply on and after 1 July 2014

The registration of Bank of India [New Zealand) Limited ["the bank™} as a registered bank is subject to the following conditions:

L. That-
[E} the Total capital ratio of the banking group |s not less than 8%;
[13] the Tier 1 capital ratio of the banking group is not less than 636
(4] the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio of the banking group is not less than 4.5%;
{d} the Total capital of the banking group is not less than 530 million; and
e} the process in Subpart 2H of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document: "Capital Adegquacy Framework (Standardised

Approach)” (BS2A) dated July 2014 is followed for the recognition and repayment of capital.

For the purpoases of this condition of registration, capital, the Total capital ratio, the Tier 1 capital ratie, and the Comman
Eguity Ther 1 capital ratio must be calculated in accordance with the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document: "Capital
Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach)” (BS2A) dated July 2014,

1A, That-

{a) the bank has an internal capital adequacy assessment process (“ICAAP) that accords with the requirements set out in the
document "Guidelines on a bank's internal capital adequacy assessment process ['ICAAP')" (8512) dated December 2007;

(i} wnder [ts ICAAP the bank identifics and measures |15 "other material risks” defined as all material risks of the banking
group that are not explicitly captured in the calculation of the Commen Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, the Tier 1 capital ratio
and the Total capital ratio under the reguirements set out in the document “Capital Adequacy Framework [Standardised
Approach)” (BS2A) dated July 2014 ; and

[c the bank determinegs an internal capetal allocation for each identified and measured "other material risk”,
18 That, if the buffer ratio of the banking group Is 2.5% or less, the bank mast:
{a) according to the following table, kimit the aggregate distributions of the bank's earnings to the percentage kmit to

distributions that corresponds to the banking group's buffer ratio:

Banking group's buffer ratic Percentage limit to distributions of the bank's earnings
0% - 0.625% 0%
>0.625 - 1.25% 205
»1.25- 1.375% A
»1.875- 2.5% B0%

L prepare a capital plan to restore the banking group's buffer ratio 1o above 2.5% within any timeframe determined by the

Reserve Bank for restoring the buffer ratio; and

c)
have the capital plan approved by the Reserve Bank For the purposas of this condition of registration, -

buffer ratio, "distributions”, and “earnings” have the same meaning as in Part 3 of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document:
“Capital Adequacy Framework [Standardised Approach]” (BS24) dated July 2014,
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F3 That the banking group does not conduct any non-financial activities that in aggregate are material relative to its total
activities.

In this condition of registration, the meaning of "material” |s based on generally accepled accounting practice.

3. That the banking group's Insurance business is not greater than 1% of 15 1otal consolidated assets.

For the purposes of this condition of registration, the banking group's insurance business is the sum of the fellowing amounes for
enuties in the banking group:

1]

if the business of an entity predominantly consists of insurance business and the entity is not a subsidlary of another
entity in the banking group whase business predominantly consists of Insurance business, the amaunt of the insurance
business 1o sum is the total consolidated assets of the group headed by the entity; and

(i} if the entity conducts insurance business and its business does not predominanthy consist of insurance business and the
entity is not a subsidiary of another entity in the banking group whose business predominantly consists of insurance
busingss, the amount of the insurance business to sum [s the total lisbilities relating to the entity's insurance business
plus the equity retained by the entity to meet the solvency or financial soundness needs of Its inturance business,

In determining the total amount of the banking group's insurance business-

[E] all amounts must relate to on balance sheet items only, and must comply with generally accepted accounting practice;
and
(141} if praducts or assets of which an insurance business is comprised also contain a non-insurance component, the whale of

such products or assets must be considered part of the insurance business.

For the purposes of this condition of registration,-
insurance business means the undertaking or assumption of liability a5 an insurer under a contract of insurance:

insurgr and "contract of insurance™ have the same meaning as provided in sections 6 and 7 of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision]
Act 2010,

4, That the aggregate credit exposures (of a non-capital nature and net of any allowances for Impairment) of the banking
group 1o all connected persans do not exceed the rating- contingent limit outlined in the following matriz:

Credit rating of the bankl Connected exposure limit |% of the Banking Group's Tier 1 capital)
Aafan2 and above 5
AAfAad ]
AsfAl (]
AfAZ a0
AfA3 30
BBB+/Baal and below 15

‘Within the rating-contingent limit, credit exposures [of a non-capital nature and net of any allowances for impairment] 1o non-bank
connected persans shall ot exceed 15% of the banking group's Tier 1 capital.

For the purpases of this condition of registration, compliance with the rating-contingent connected expasure limit is determined in
accordance with the Reserve Bank of New Zealand decument emtitled *Connected Exposures Policy™ [B58) dated July 2014,

5, That exposures to connected persons are not on more favourable terms [e.g. as refates to such matters as credit
assessment, tenor, interest rates, amortisation schedules and reguirernent for collateral) than carresponding exposures
to nof-connectied persans,
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That the bank complies with the following corporate governance requirements:

E'} the bpard of the bank must have at least five directors;

b} the majovity of the board members must be non-executive directors;

e} at least half of the board members must be independent dractors;

{d) an alternate director,-

il for a non-executive director must be non-executive; and

{ii for an independent director must be independent;

el at least half of the independent directars of the bank must be ardinarily resident in New Zealand,;

in the chairperson of the board of the bank must be independent; and

18 the bank's constitution must not incdude any provision permitting a directos, when exercising powers or performing

duties as a director, to act other than in what he or she believes is the best interests of the company [L.e- the bank).

For the purpases of this condition of registration, “non-mxecutive™ and “independent” have the same meaning as In the Reserve Bank
of Mew Zealand document entitled “Corporate Governance™ (B514] dated July 2014,

T That no appointment of any director, chief executive officer, or executive who reports or is acocountable directly to the
chief executive officer, is made in respect of the bank unless:

1 This tatdle uses the rating scales of Standard & Poor's, Fitch Ratings and Moody's Investors Senvice. (Fitch Ratings' scale is

|dentical to Standard B Poor's,}
{a) the Resarve Bank has been supplied with a copy of the curriculum vitae of the propased appointee; and
{b) the Reserve Bank has advised that it hasno objection to that appointment.

8 That a person must not be appointed as chairperson of the board of the bank unless:

(2} the Reserve Bank has been supplied with a copy of the curriculum vitse of the proposed appaintee; and

(] the Reserve Bank has advised that it has no objection to that appointment.

9 That the bank has a board audit committes, or other separate board committee covering audit matters, that meets the
following requirements:

{a) the mandate of the committee must include: ensuring the integrity of the bank's financial controks, reparting systems and
internal audit standards;

[B) the committee must have at lnast three members;

[c) every member of the committee must be a non-executive director of the bank;

{d) the majority of the mambers of the committes must be independens; and

(3] the chairperson of the committee must be independent and must not be the chalrperson of the bank.

For the purposes of this condition of registration, "non-executive” and “independent” have the same meaning as in the Reserve Bank
of New Zealand document entitled "Corporate Governance” (BS14) dated luly 2014,

10 That a substantial propartion of the bank’s business is cenducted in and from New Zealand.
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[a}
{b)

That the banking group complies with the following quantitative requirernents for Bquidity- risk management:
the one-week mismatch ratio of the banking group is not less than rero per cent at the end of each business day,
the one-month mismatch ratio of the banking group 5 not less than zeco per cent at the end of each business day; and

the ane-year core funding ratio of the banking group is not less than 75 per cent a1 the end of each business day,

For the purpases of this condition of registration, the ratios identified must be calculated in accordance with the Reserve Bank of New
Zealand documents entitled “Uquidity Policy” (BS13) dated July 2014 and "Liquidity Policy Annex: Liquid Assets” (E5134) dated
December 2011,

12

[a]

(b}

id]

i3

That the bank has an internal framewsrk for liquigity rsk management that 1s adequate in the bank’s view for managing
the bank's liguidity risk at a prudent level, and that, In particular:

is clearly documented and communicated 1o all those in the organisation with respensibility for managing liquidity and
ligpuicity risk;

identifies responsibility for approval, oversight and implementation of the framework and policies for liquidity risk
management;

identifies the principal methods that the bank will use for measuring, monitoring and controlling liquidity risk; and

considers the material sources of stress that the bank might face, and prepares the bank to manage stress through a
contingency funding plan.

That o mare than 10% of total assets may be beneficially owned by a SPV. For the purpoges of this condition, -

tatal assets means all assets of the banking group plus any assets held by any 5PV that are not included in the banking group’s assets:

5P means a person-

[ah
{b)

{el

to whom any member of the banking group has sold, assigned, or otherwise transferred any asset;
wha has granted, or may grant, a security interest in its assets for the benefit of any holder of any covered bond; and

wha carries on no other business except for that necessary or incidental to guarantee the obligations of any member of
the banking group under a covered bond:

covered band means a debt securnity issued by any member of the banking group, for which repayment to holders |s guaranteed by a
5PV, and investors retaln an unsecured claim on the issuer,

14
{a]

i

|

)

it

That-
no member of the banking group may give effect to a qualifying acquisition or business combination that meets the
notification threshold, and does not meet the non-objection threshold, unless:

the bank has notified the Reserve Bank in writing of the intended acguisition or buginess combination and at least 10
wiorking days have passed; and

at the time of notifying the Reserve Bank of the inended acquisition or business combination, the bank provided the
Resarve Bank with the information required under the Resarve Bank of Kew Zealand Banking Supervision Handboak
document "Significant Acquisitions Policy” (B515) dated December 2011; and

no member of the banking growp may give effect to a qualifying acquisition or business combination that meots the non-
objection threshold unless:

the bank has notified the Reserve Bank in writing of the intended acquisition or business comiknation;
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i} at the time of notifying the Reserve Bank of the intended acquisition or basiness combination, the bank provided the
Reserve Bank with the information required under the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Banking Supervision Handbook
document "Significant Acquisitions Policy” (B515) dated December 2011; and

fii} the Reserve Bank has given the bank a notice of non-objection to the significant acquisition or business combénation.

For the purposes of this condition of registration, "gualifying acguisition or business combination”; "notification threshold" and "non-
objection threshold™ have the same meaning as in the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Banking Supenvision Hondbook document
"Significant Acquisitions Policy® (B515) dated December 2011,

15. That, for a loan-to-valuation measurement period, the total of the bank's qualifing new mortgage lending amounts must
not for residential properties with a loan-to-valuation ratio of mese than B0%, exceed 10% of the total of the qualifying
new martgage bending amounts arisging in the loan-1o-valuation measurement peripd.

16, That the bank must not make a residential mortgage loan unless the terms and conditions of the loan contract or the
terms and conditions for an associated mortpage reguire that a borrower obtain the bank's agreement before the
borroweer can grant to anather person a charge over the residential property used s security for the loan,

17. That the bank must nat permit a bormawer to grant & charge in favour of another person over a residential property used
as security for a residential mortgage loan unless the sum of the lending secured by the charge and the loan value for the
res/dential mortgage loan would not exceed BO% of the property value of the residential property when the lending
secured by tha charge is drawn down,

18. That the bank must not provide  residential morgage loan if the residential property to be morigaged to the bank as
security for the residential mortgage loan is subject 1o a charge in favour of another person unless the total amount of
credit secured by the residential propesty would not exceed BO% of the property value when the residential mortgage
loan is drawn down.

19, That the bank must not act as broker or arrange for a member of its banking group to provide a residential morigage
loan.

in these conditions of registration,- "banking group™ means Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Umited (as reporting entity) and all other entities
included in the group as defined in section 8{1) of the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 for the purposes of Part 7 of that Act.

Generally accepted accounting practice has the same meaning as in section B of the Financial Reporting Act 2013,

In conditions of registration 15 to 19,

Inan-to-valuation ratio, "loan value®, *property value”, "qualifying new mortgage lending amount™ and “residential mortgage loan”
have the same meaning asin the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document entitted "Framework for Restrictions on High-LVR
Residential Maortgage Lending™ (8519) dated July 2014:

lvan-to-valuation measurement period means a period of six calendar months ending on the last day of the sixth calendar month, the
first of which ends on the last day of March 2014.
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Appendix 3

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

Dated 14" January, 2011

DEED OF GUARANTEE

By

BANK OF INDIA

In respect of the obligations of

BOI (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED
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Appendix 3

-
THIS DEED is mada on | "Jﬂawrar 2011
; BY

(1), BANK OF INDIA a body corporale conslituted under the Banking Companies (Acquisition &
Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970, having its Head Cffice at Star House, C-5, G Biock, Bandra-
K:iJ.l‘h. Compiex, Bandra (East), Mumbai, india (hereinafler refared io as the "Bank");
AND WE
{Z) BOl (NEW ZEALAND)] LIMITED a Company incorporated in New Zealand heving Hs mgimmg' :
office gt Level 18, PricewstethouseCoopers Tower, 188 Cuay Steel Auckland, New Zealanis

{nerainafier referred to as *BoINZT) g’u
=
=
IN FAVOUR OF ' g
{3} EACH CREDITCR OF BOINZ 5

A)  BOINZ is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank and set up for the purpose of doing the busi
of banking In New Zealand.

WHEREAS : & gg
;

subeidiary, BoiNZ, (o the exient provided for by the terms of this Deed.

!

2 g

]

B} The Bank enlers ino this Deed of Guaraniee for the purpose of guaraniesing the cbligations isg E
&

|

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERFRETATION E i

1.1 Inthis Deed and in the Recitals, unliess the context otherwise requires:

“Authorised Officer” means, whera a Creditor s a Person olber than a natural W‘%ﬁ. e
or secredary of that Person or a person duly authorised by the Credilee under the Tesol
seal of the Pergon;

0

g |
"Business Day” mears eny dey, other than a Saturday or Sunday or public holighy, qmwica\
banks are open for genera! business in Welinglon and Auckland, s
; -

<Z_ |y

——

-100
.o

YHIHSYVHYHYA
DoLsE

ve:ds

LIDZ EL N¥I
B SR
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1.2

1.3

21

22

23

2.4

"Creditor” means each and any Parson to whom an Obligation is due and awed by BolNZ during
the validity period of this Guarantes. :

“Guarantes™ mesns the guarantes by the Bank for the benefit of the Creditors pursuant and
subject 1o the terms and conditions of this Deed:

“Obligation” meena o legally enforceable, undlsputed lubillly w wiigulon of BOINE 1o & Craditor
ranking &t least parl passu with the claims of unsecured crediiors of BolNZ. PROVIDED THAT
“Obligation® shall not Include:

(8)  any labilty of BaiNZ in respect of Spacial, axemnplary or punitive damages; andior
(b} any liablity for peyment of texes, rates, imposis, duties or simiar government charges:
andior

()  any claimlablitylobligation which is subject {o a bona fide dispute; andior

(d)  any obligation in respect of which the Credier has not submdtied proper proof and othar
documents and seeurity, to enable BOINZ to discharge the said obiigations; andior

{e)  any claimiobligation in respect of a eantingent liablity; andiar
(fy  eny claimfiabliity which is barmed by the law of Imitation of such simikar [,

*Parson” meens any persen, firm, frust, estate, corporation, association, co-operative, govermmant
or gowvernmental agency,

Werds imparting the singuiar numbar or plural number shall inskide the plural number and singular
number respectively, Words Importing any gender shall include avery gender.

References io laws, statutes or laglalation are to the lews, statues or legistation for the time being
I foree in New Zealand, unless the corirary appears fram the corlext of this Dead.

GUARANTEE

The Bank heraby uncondlionally guaraniees for the benefit of each Crediter the due and punchual
payment by BolNZ of each and svery Obligation (whether at stated maturity or upon accelaration 1
now ewing or to become owing by BolNZ 1o the Creditor during the tarm of the Guarantes to the
intertt that should BolNZ defaull In the due and punciual paymant of any such Obligation, the Bank
shall, upon written demand by the relevant Cradilor under clause 3.2, fartiréih paY or cause to ba
paid 1o the Credilar all amounts then due and unpaid with respact (0 such Obligation logether with
all posts and expenses incurmed by the Creditor in enforcing the Guaraniee.

The Guarantee (s & continuing guaranise and shall not be considered as eatisfied by any
intermediate payment and shail rsemain in fores until the termination or explry of the Guarantee.

Subject to the terms of this Deed, nelther the liability of Bank, nor any of tha rights of any Credilar,
under the Guerantea shall be affacted or discharged by anything which, but for this clause, might
operate to affect or discharge the llability of, or otherwise provide a defence to, the Guararor
(whether or not known lo, or done or omiltted 1o be done by, the Guarantor).

Natwithstending clauss 2.2, @ Creditor may at any time by an instrument in wriling, rieasa the
Bani from Its liability undar the Guarentee In relation to that Credior

ALER_ OO0 R e

- = Cﬂa—’—jr sz

‘:-':_?j\ax_p-_\w
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26

3.1

32

33

The Bank shall be Eable only for payment of an Obligation in fhe manner, (o the sxtent and up to
the amount tha! BolNZ would be lable or permilled io make payment in satisfaction of such
Obligation under applicable laws and regulations and in catermining and making such paymant
the Bank shall be entifed to deduct the amounts {if any) which the Bank is entiled in lew or in
equity lo zet-aff or counterclalm against the Cradior to whom that Obligation & owed and fha
amounis (if any) which BolNZ coud have sal-off or counterciamad in law of in egpely against he
Cradiior te whom sech Qbligation is owed it BolNZ were making payment to thal Creditor in lieu of
the Banix. Nothing contalned In this Deed shall reducs the labiity of the Bank with respect to any
Obligation of BolNZ which is reduced or discharged by reason of the insclvency, administration,
lquidation, recelvership or rearganisation of BolNZ.

DEMAND AND PAYMENT

A Creditor shail be enfitied to make a demand under this Deed if and enly i

(#)  the Creditor has served written demand (a "Primary Demand”) an BolNZ with proper proaf
Tor the paymeni of an Obligation which remaine unpabd beyond its due dale;

{t) the Creditor has comphed with the requirements of BOINZ Including wih regard to
decumentation and securfty and the Primary Demand remains unsstisfied in whole or in pert
for & period of § Business Days sfler submission of necessary Primary Demand;

A demand by @ Credior undes this Deed (a "Creditors Demand®) shall be sarved on the Bank and
shall be accompanied by a slatulory dectaration made by tha Cradior or by an Authoriged Ofcar
of tha Creditor stating:

{a} the residency and place of businass of the Credilor;
{B) that BaiNZ has talled o meet an Obligation;

(g}  that o Primary Demand in respect of that Obligation has been given to BolNZ (accompanied
by a verfied copy of that Pdmary Demand) and that such Primary Demend has remained
unsatisfied for 8 parlod of 5 Business Davys as steted in 3.1(b);

[d)  briet pariculars of the nalue of that Obligation [accomparied by @ verillod copy of dny
dosurment giving rise to that Obligation):

(&)  that the Obligation ranks ai least pari passu with the claims of unsecured cregiors of BolNZ
penerally,

) the cutstanding amount and currancy of that Obligation; and

(g} thet there 's no bona fide dspute relating %o that Obligation.

Service of the Creditors Demand and a'l accompanying dosuments under clavse 3.2 on the Bank
shall constilute a writien demand by the Creditor under clause 2.4,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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4.1

4.2

5.1

B2

PAYMENTS
All payments by the Bank under this Deed shall be made in the currency or currencies in which the

relevant Chligation s denominated.

Payments hereunder shell be mace free and clear of any deductian or withheldings. |In the event
that the Bank I probidded by law from making peyments hereunder free of deductions or
withholdings, then the Bank shall pay such additional amount to the relevant Creditor a8 may be
necasgary in order thal the actual amount received after all applicable deductions and withholdings
shall wqual the amount that would have been recelved i such deductions or withholdings were not
requirad.

REPRESENTATIONS
The Bank represents and warranis 1ha1.'-
{a) Itisa registerad bank duly organised and valdly existing under the laws of India;

() it has the corporate power io enfer into this Deed and to perform the cbigations imposed
upon it under this Deed In accordance with its terrs; and

(e}  this Deed constiutes a valld, binding and enforceable obBgation ugon it
TERMINATION OF GUARANTEE

MNaotwithstanding anything o the confrary in thig Deed, the Guarantes shall terminate automatically
on the first to occur of the following events:

{@)  inrespect of all Obligations I
{i}  any substantial asset of BolMZ; or
{f)  mny share in the issued capital of BolNZ,

iz exproprialed or nallonallsed by the Governmenl of Mew Zealand or by any palilical
subdivision thereof (the "Government?) or any entity susteeding to the powers of any such
Government or any agency of any such Governmant or any such successor entity or any
authority which ks owned or controlled by any such Government or any such successor aniity
except whera such expropriation or naionalisation resulls from the defaul! by BolNZ of any
statule, regulation or other binding law; o

(B} & changs in any law or regulation in any jurisdiction which renders the Guaranies ilegal or
inaperative in New Zealand or

{c} BOINZ ceasing to be a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank.

Immediately aftar the Bank becomes aware of the termination of the Gueranles pursuant 1o clause
8.1, the Bank shall notily BalNZ thereof and give notice of such termination by an advertisament in
a newspaper cireulating generally throughout New Zealand,
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g.1

SUBROGATION

The Bank and BolNZ expressly agree ihat the Bank Is and shall be entitied to all the rights and
remedies of a guarantor undes law. including, withowt Eming the generality of the faregolng, all
rights of subsegation which shall acerue o the Bank by virtua of any payment hereunder by the
Bank to or for the benefit of any Craditor and, subject to the law, the Bank shall be emtiBed to caim
the benefit of and participale in any securlty now or hereafler hefd by that Credilor from BalNZ
either in whole of upen @ pro-rata basis, as the case may be, whera the Bank has paid all maneys
o er for the banefd of thal Creditor under (his Deed. MNaotwithslanding the generality of the
foregaing, the Bank shall not axercise or seek to enforce any claim against BolNZ {whather or no!
In liguication) far reimbursarment to the Bank of any moneys pald pursuant to this Deed by the Bank
lo & Craddor in respect of an Obligation until the default of BolNZ In respect of that Obligation has
been fully remedied by BolNZ or the Bank.

DEALINGS BETWEEN THE BANK AND THE CREDITORS

After recelpt of a written demand fom a Craditor under clausa 3.2 tha Bank and that CredEar shall
daal with one another as pringipal in relation 1o all matters under or in relation to this Deed, the
Guarantee and BalMZ.

Without [imiting the generality of clause 3, the Bank shall be and Is entilied to serve any notice,
demands or statermants in connection with this Deed upon 1hal Credior (at its place of business
specified in the Creditor's Damand) and he Bank shall ke and is entiled bo make any payment
which it is liable to pay to the Credor under this Deed directly to that Greditor and not through any
ather Person,

NOTICES
Any nofice o the Creditors generally In respect of this Deed wil be validly given i published in a

newipaper circutating generally througheut Mew Zealand. Any such notice shall be deemed 1o
have bean given on the dete of publisation or, If published more than ence, on the date of first

o B

ALK, POCRIE L] Page 5
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19,1

Any notice, demand, stalement o clher document required 1o be served on or delivared to the
Bank or BolNZ under or In refation to this Deed {"Motica™) shall be in writing signed by the party
giving tha Notice or by an Authorised Ctficer of that party, shall be made, served or given {subject
In the case of the Bank o davee 11.2) by belng left at or sent by prepald mail or by facsimile as
follows:

o the Bank:
Bank of India

Intermational Division

3™ Floar, East Wing

Star House

C-5, G Block

Bandra = Kurla Complex

Bandrs (East]

Mumbal = 400 051

Ingia

Attantion:  The General Manager, international Division

to Bolkz
BO| (New Zealand] Limited

Leval 18, PricawaterhousaCoopere Tower

188 Quay Street, Auckland

MNew Zealand

Attantion: Maenaging Director

of to such other address or facsimile number as shall have been nofified (in accordance with this
clause) io tha other party herato, NuuoﬁummmgmdwmuhmmmwmmM
BoINE untdl actualy recelved by the relevant parly fo whom il s addressed = s designated
addrass.

AMENDMENT

The Bank may, from time 12 tima and without any autharily or assant of BolNZ or the Creditors,
afer, modfy, or add o this Deed if in the reasonable opinion of the Bank-

{8) the alteration, modification or additlon i made 10 carect a maniest errer or is of @ formal or
technical nature;

(£} the medification, altaration or addition is necessary to comply with the provisions of any statute,
whether or net required by any statutory autnorly; or
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. [c) the alterslion, modification or addition Is desirable for the' purpoee of more adventageously
I adrministering the rights and obllgations established under this Deed.

and in any case such madification, alleration or addifion s considesed by the Bank, acling in good
. faith, not to be materdaly prejudicial to the Creditors as wheie, 85 far as known ta i

11, GOVERNING LAW

11.1 This Daed shall be govemed by and construad In ascordance with the laws for the time being in
force in Wew Zealand. The Sank and BolNZ each hereby submit, for the purposes of this Dead, 1o
the non-axclusive jurisdiclion of the Courts of New Zealand in respect of all kegal actions arising
ursder or in redation to this Dead,

11.2 The Bank hereby Frevocebly appoints BaiNZ (and ol hereby accepts such sppoiniment) to ba
the agent of the Bank 1o accept service of process on behalf of the Bank in respect of &l matters in
Mew Zealand arising under or in relation to this Deed and fha Bank agrees that any such process
shall be properly served upon the Bark if delivered to BolMZ st s address for the sevice of
Hotices set outin clause 8.2,

12 ASSIGNMENT

12.1 No parly to Ihic Deed may sesign its rights or obligations hereunder without the consent In wiriting
of the other pany,

13. CERTIFICATE

131 BolNZ shall advise the Bank in wriling within fouriesen (14} days of a request in wriling from the
Bank {made no more fraquently than quartarly or following recaipt oy |t of & Credfor's Demand) ta
do 80, of its best estimate of the agpregate principal amount of the Cbligations for which it is
Indebted as at such dete to slther all of the Cradiiors ganerally of 1o those Credilors specified by
the Bank in its request.

EXECUTED a5 a Deed

H
EXECUTED as a DEED for and on behalf —
of BANK OF INDIA ) iy
(S.K=DATTA [ V. ARTHANARI }
General Manager Chief Manager
Intermational Internatonal Division

EXECUTED as a DEED for and on behalf |
of BOI (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED ) ﬂg\-\.w-"" M
| % - —
{B.X PRAEHAKAR |

[ N

i
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Independent auditor’s review report

To the Shareholder of the Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

We have reviewed pages 9 to 47 of the interim financial statements of Bank of India (New
Zealand) Limited (the ‘Bank’) prepared and disclosed in accordance with the Registered Bank
Disclosure Statements (New Zealand Incorporated Registered Bank) Order 2014 (the *Order’,
as Amended), and the supplementary information prescribed in Schedules 3, 5,7, 9, 13, 16 and
18 of the Order. The interim financial statements, and supplementary information, provide
information about the past financial performance and cash flows of the Bank and its financial
position as at 30 September 2014.

Directors’ responsibilities for the disclosure statement

The Directors of Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Disclosure Statement, which includes interim financial statements prepared
in accordance with Clause 25 of the Order and NZ IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting (“NZ
IAS 34™); which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as at 30 September
2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the six month ended on that date. The
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine are necessary
to enable the preparation of the Disclosure Statement including the interim financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

They are also responsible for the preparation of supplementary information in the Disclosure
Statement which fairly states the matters to which it relates in accordance with Schedules 3, 5,
7.9, 13, 16 and 18 of the Order.

Reviewer's responsibilil
P

We are responsible for reviewing the interim financial information and the supplementary
information, disclosed in accordance with Clause 25 and Schedules 3,5, 7,9, 13, 16 and 18 of
the Order and presented to us by the Directors.

We are responsible for reviewing the interim financial statements (excluding the supplementary
information) in order to report to you whether, in our opinion on the bases of the procedures
described below, anything has come to our attention that would cause us to believe that the
interim financial statements have not been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
New Zealand Equivalent to International Accounting Standard 34 (NZ IAS 34): Interim
Financial Reporting and do not present a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Banking Group as at 31 March 2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the six
months ended on that date.

We are responsible for reviewing the supplementary information {excluding the supplementary
information relating to capital adequacy) in order to report to you whether, in our opinion on the
basis of the procedures described below, anything has come to our attention that would cause
us to believe that the supplementary information does not fairly state the matters to which it
relates in accordance with Schedules 5, 7, 13, 16 and 18 of the Order.



We are responsible for reviewing the supplementary information relating to capital adequacy in
order to state whether, on the basis of the procedures described below, anything has come to our
attention that would cause us to believe that the information disclosed in accordance with
Schedule 9 is not, in all material respects, prepared in accordance with the Bank’s Conditions
for Registration and with the Capital Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach) (BS2ZA);
and disclosed in accordance with Schedule 9 of the Order.

Basis of opinion

We have performed our review in accordance with the review engagement standard RS-]
Statement of Review Engagement Standards issued by the External Reporting Board. A review
is limited primarily to enquiries of the Bank’s personnel and analytical review procedures
applied to the financial data, and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not
performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. Qur firm has also
provided other services to the Bank in relation to advisory services. Partners and employees of
our firm may also deal with the Bank on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading
activities of the business of the Bank. There are, however, certain restrictions on dealings which
the partners and employees of our firm can have with the Bank. These matters have not impaired
our independence as auditor of the Bank. The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in,
the Bank.

Review opinion

We have examined the interim financial statements including the supplementary information
and based on our review, which is not an audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us
to believe that:

o the interim financial statements on pages 9 to 47 (excluding the supplementary information)
have not been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with NZ 1AS 34: Interim
Financial Reporting and do not present a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Bank as at 30 September 2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the six
months ended on that date;

e the supplementary information prescribed by Schedules 5, 7, 13, 16 and 18 of the Order
does not fairly state the matters to which it relates in accordance with those schedules; and

e the supplementary information relating to capital adequacy prescribed by Schedule 9 of the
Order is not, in all material respects, prepared in accordance with the Bank’s Conditions of
Registration, with the Capital Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach) (BSZA) and
disclosed in accordance with Schedule 9 of the Order.

Our review was completed on 11 November 2014 and our conclusion is expressed as at that
date.

Kol

11 November 2014
Auckland



